
 

 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers and via GoToMeeting 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 
 

June 11, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL  

 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments June 4, 2024 
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated June 11, 2024 
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes May 28, 2024 

 
VI. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Vista Field Proposal, BlueChart Homes, LLC; Resolution 2024-10 (TIM/AMBER)  
 

VII. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Approval of Goal #10 for CEO; Resolution 2024-11 (NICK/CAROLYN) 
B. Plymouth Holdings/Comp Scheme Review (LARRY/TANA) 
 

VIII. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Commission Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
B. Non-Scheduled Items  

(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/NICK/LARRY/AMBER/MICHAEL/CAROLYN/ TIM/KEN/TOM/SKIP) 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

PLEASE MUTE YOUR MICROPHONE UNLESS YOU ARE SPEAKING  
AND SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

 

To continue to provide public access to meetings, Port of Kennewick will provide telephonic, video access,  
and in-person participation options to the public. 

 
To participate by telephone, please call in at:  1 866 899 4679, Access Code:  310-245-037 

Or, join on-line at the following link: https://meet.goto.com/310245037 

tel:+18668994679,,310245037
https://meet.goto.com/310245037




PORT OF KENNEWICK 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      
  DRAFT   MAY 28, 2024 MINUTES 
   

Page 1 of 4 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 
Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 
Commission President Skip Novakovich called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
  

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 
The following were present: 
 
Board Members: Skip Novakovich, President (via telephone)    
 Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President (via telephone) 
 Thomas Moak, Secretary (via telephone) 
   
Staff Members: Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive (via telephone) 
 Nick Kooiker, Deputy Chief Executive Officer/CFO 
 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate (via telephone) 
 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone)  
 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator (via telephone) 
 David Phongsa, Marketing/Capital Projects Coordinator  (via telephone) 
 Carolyn Lake, Port Counsel (via telephone) 
  
Commissioner Novakovich stated due to Mr. Boehnke’s absence, Item 7A, Kennewick Waterfront is 
removed. 
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Ms. Scott led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
No comments were made.   
  
CONSENT AGENDA                        

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated May 15, 2024 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $160,858.04 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated May 28, 2024 
Expense Fund Voucher Number 105895 through 105936 for a grand total of $119,056.92 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes May 14, 2024 
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve the Consent Agenda presented;  
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 
3:0. 
 
 
 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   MAY 28, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 2 of 4 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
A. Vista Field Lot #15 Purchase and Sale Agreement 

Ms. Hanchette presented a Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) with Kuki, LLC. for Lot 15 in 
Vista Field and outlined the details of the planned Japanese restaurant (Exhibit A).   
 
Commission and Port staff discussed the details of the PSA and expressed their excitement for 
the new Japanese restaurant. 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve Resolution 2024-09 approving a Purchase 
and Sale Agreement with Kuki, LLC for the purchase of Lot 15 in the Port’s Vista Field 
redevelopment project; and that all action by Port officers and employees in furtherance hereof is 
ratified and approved; and further, the Port Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all action 
necessary in furtherance hereof; Commissioner Moak seconded.   
 

Discussion:  
 
Commissioner Hohenberg looks forward to seeing this business thrive and he hopes that they 
stay so busy that they'll have to look for another location in the future as well.  Commissioner 
Hohenberg has heard great things about this restaurant and he and his wife are looking forward 
to frequenting it after it's open.  
 
Commissioner Moak stated he hopes this is the first of many restaurants that we will see at Vista 
Field and being the first one in, he hopes that will give them a leg up and is looking forward to 
that. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 

 
With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
    
REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  

A. Vista Field Southern Gateway Project Update 
Ms. Bader Inglima presented a construction update for the Vista Field Southern Gateway project 
(Exhibit B).  Mr. Phongsa has been posting photos to the Port’s social media accounts to keep the 
public apprised of the project. 
 

B. HRA VEBA Board Nomination 
Mr. Kooiker received a solicitation from the Health Reimbursement Account Voluntary 
Employees’ Beneficiary Association (HRAVEBA) Trust Board seeking a trustee board member.  
Mr. Kooiker and Mr. Arntzen discussed it at length, and it was determined that this would be good 
for the Port of Kennewick, because we are heavily vested in the VEBAtrust as a benefit for Port 
staff and Commissioners.  Ms. Bader Inglima has drafted a nomination letter nominating Mr. 
Kooiker to sit on the VEBA Trust Board; however, that does not mean that he will get nominated. 
The position requires two meetings per year, a $25.00 per year fee, and it is an unpaid position.  



PORT OF KENNEWICK   MAY 28, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 3 of 4 

 

Ms. Bader Inglima clarified that the HRA VEBA is a nonprofit, multiple employer, voluntary 
employee benefits association which offers a funded health reimbursement arrangement and HRA.  
It has been a significant benefit to our Port, and we would like to make sure it is solvent, and stays 
managed well.  It is a seven-member board of trustees that manages all the assets and with Mr. 
Kooiker’s accounting background Mr. Arntzen felt it would be worthwhile to nominate him. If the 
Commission concurs, then we would send the nomination letter along with a bio. 
 
The Commission supports sending a nomination letter for Mr. Kooiker for the HRA VEBA Board 
of Trustees. 
 

C. RCO Grant Update 
Ms. Bader Inglima presented the progress on the projects that the Port maintenance staff have made 
on the RCO Local Parks Maintenance Grant projects (Exhibit C).    
 

D. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.  
 

E. Non-Scheduled Items   
Ms. Bader Inglima shared that the celebration of life for Rod Mineke will be held at the Clover 
Island Yacht Club on July 6th at 1:00 p.m.  As you recall, Mr. Mineke was instrumental in working 
with the Port to rebuild the Clover Island Yacht Club (West Marina Professional Building). 
 
Mr. Kooiker reported last weekend was the first weekend for the Clover Island concert series at 
the Clover Island Inn, featuring the new portable stage.  Mr. Kooiker has seen many positive 
comments on social media about how successful the weekend was with the new stage.  Mr. Kooiker 
thanked the Commission for investing in the vibrancy of Clover Island.  
 
Commissioner Hohenberg thanked the maintenance team for their diligence in keeping Port 
properties maintained and free from weeds and the Vista Field water features clear.  Commissioner 
Hohenberg offered kudos to the Port staff because they do the heavy lifting, and he appreciates the 
efforts of staff to get the Port to this point of selling property at Vista Field.    
 
Commissioner Novakovich also heard a lot of positive comments about that stage over the 
weekend and thanked Port staff and his fellow Commissioners for agreeing to put that stage there 
and believes it will bring more attention to the island and the Port ok Kennewick. 
    

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made.  
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 
 
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   MAY 28, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 4 of 4 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 2:45 p.m.  
 
 
 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
 
Skip Novakovich, President 
 
 
 
 

       
 
Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
 

 
 

 
      

  
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA6BE0E0-3A06-40AF-AEB5-0DB7F257C2A1



     AGENDA REPORT 

TO: Port Commission 

FROM: Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate 

MEETING DATE:  May 28, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:   Vista Field Purchase & Sale Agreement – Lot 15 
 Resolution 2024-09 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

I. REFERENCE(S):
• Letter of Intent dated August 16, 2023
• Resolution 2024-04 – 90 Day Right to Negotiate

II. FINANCIAL IMPACT:    Revenue $95,000

III. DISCUSSION:

Isabelle Yuri Na submitted her letter of intent to the port dated August 16, 2023, asking
to purchase lot 15 in Vista Field for construction of a 3,500 square foot, single story
Japanese restaurant.

EXHIBIT A



Lot 15 is a highly visible corner parcel with frontage along Crosswind Boulevard, 
directly across from Vista Field’s signature water feature and a pedestrian bridge 
connecting Crosswind to the future activity slated for Lot 25.  The proposed building 
will be a stylish upscale restaurant serving Japanese style cuisine attracting customers 
with local wines and Japanese traditional sakes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The port commission approved a 90 day Right-to-Negotiate on February 27, 2024 
allowing port staff and Ms. Na to work through the details of a purchase and sale 
agreement now being submitted for commission consideration.   
 
The proposed building design continues to proceed through the Collaborative Design 
Process with the port’s Vista Field Town Architect, Matt Lambert of DPZ CoDesign.  
 
Ms. Na’s contractor CSW Construction is working through the permit process with the 
City of Kennewick and anticipates construction to begin in late summer/early Fall of 
this year.  
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A



 
Purchase and sale agreement highlights:  

• Vista Field Lot 15 – 4,928 square foot parcel 
• 3,500 square foot restaurant building 
• Uses: Hospitality/Restaurant 
• Price - $95,000 fixed price for parcel.  
• Effective date = Date PSA is approved by commissioners 
• Time to completion = 24 months from effective date of PSA 
• PSA to be signed by Ms. Na as owner of Kuki, LLC.  
• Agreement is subject to Vista Field Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, 

Vista Field Design Standards, an Obligation to Construct and Repurchase 
Option.  

• Contingencies:  
o Seller’s obligations to construct common area parking, use easement for 

waste container, license agreement for use of property during 
construction.  

o Buyer’s contingencies: feasibility study, environmental conditions, and 
financing.  

 
 
 

IV. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION: 
Motion:    
 
I move approval of Resolution 2024-09 approving a purchase 
and sale agreement with Kuki, LLC for the purchase of lot 15 
in the port’s Vista Field redevelopment project; and that all 
action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof is 
ratified and approved; and further, the Port Chief Executive 
Officer is authorized to take all action necessary in furtherance 
hereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A



Vista Field
Southern Gateway

Project Update

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



RCO Local Parks 
Maintenance Grant

$82,375
Projects/Progress

EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



























1750 West Front Street, Suite 150 Tel: 208.332.0700 www.northwest-bank.com         
Boise, ID 83702 Fax: 208.332.0750

June 7, 2024 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Northwest Bank has worked with Blue Fern Development, Ben Paulus, and related development 
companies since 2011.  In that time we have financed the construction of hundreds of homes and 
hundreds of acres of land development.  Further, we have witnessed the financial success of projects 
where Blue Fern has partnered with Levi Holmes at Chartwell over the past several years.   

Blue Fern has entitled and built (through their in-house contractor, Teak Construction) hundreds of 
homes in the Pacific Northwest.  Both Blue Fern and Chartwell have entitled over 2,000 lots with 
more than 3,000 additional lots in their current pipeline.  At 48 lots and a closing price of 
$3,900,000 it is with a high degree of confidence that I can say that Blue Fern and partners would 
have both financial and operational capacity to execute on the Vista Fields project in Kennewick and 
continue to have excess capacity. 

Please feel free to contact me via email or phone to discuss. 

Sincerely, 

Erik Pray 
Senior Vice President 
erik.pray@gmail.com 
208-332-0722

http://www.northwest-bank.com/




















PORT OF KENNEWICK 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK TO 

APPROVE A 90 DAY RIGHT TO NEGOTIATE PERIOD  

WITH BLUECHART LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick (“Port) Commission has authorized port staff to 

market parcels for sale within the Vista Field redevelopment project; and  

 

WHEREAS, port staff has received a proposal from Levi Holmes and Ben Paulus of 

BlueChart LLC for construction of approximately 300 single family residential units throughout 

multiple phases of the port’s Vista Field redevelopment project; and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposal has received preliminary staff, legal and design review related 

to the Vista Field Master Plan and Collaborative Design Process. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of 

Commissioners hereby approves a ‘90 Day Right to Negotiate’ time-period with BlueChart LLC 

for construction of  300 single family residential homes within Vista Field.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of Commissioners 

hereby ratify and approve all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; and 

authorize the Port Chief Executive Officer to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof. 

  

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 11th day of June, 

2024. 

PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

      By:  _______________________________ 

        

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  

      

     By: _______________________________ 

        

KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 

      By: _______________________________ 

        

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 

 

 



MOTION TO APPROVE:  

I move approval of Resolution 2024-10 approving a 90-Day Right to 
Negotiate with BlueChart Homes for the development of single-
family homes in the port’s Vista Field redevelopment project; and that 
all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof is 
ratified and approved; and further, the Port Chief Executive Officer is 
authorized to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof. 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS: 

I move approval of Resolution 2024-10 authorizing a 90-Day Right to 
Negotiate time-period with BlueChart Homes for the development of 
single family homes in the port’s Vista Field development project; 
And, I direct the CEO to address the following matters (if any): 

1. __________________________ 
2. __________________________ 
3. __________________________ 

 

 

MOTION TO DENY: 

I move to approve Resolution 2024-10 rejecting a 90-Day Right to 
Negotiate time-period with BlueChart Homes for the development of 
single family homes in the port’s Vista Field development project 
development for the following reason:  ____________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 
 





  
 

AGENDA REPORT  
 
TO:  Port of Kennewick Commission 
  
FROM:   The CEO Evaluation Committee:  
    Port Commissioner Ken Hohenberg, 
    Port Deputy CEO & Chief Financial Officer Nick Kooiker and  
    Port General Legal Counsel Carolyn Lake  
 
MEETING DATE:   June 11, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Action by Commission: Motion to Approve Resolution 2024-11 and its 

Exhibit A, Approving Committee’s Recommended Update to CEO 
Goals to Address Flexible Goal # 10 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I. REFERENCE(S):   Resolution 2023-29 and Exhibit A, adopted October 24, 2023, 
Commission Approval of CEO’s Goals & Objectives 
 
Proposed Resolution 2024-11  

 
II. FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

 
III. DISCUSSION:       

 
The Port Commission oversees the annual evaluation of the Port’s Chief Executive Officer’s 
(“CEO”) performance pursuant to the CEO’s Employment Agreement, and pursuant to 
Resolution 2022-19, by which the Commission authorized a CEO Evaluation Committee.  
 
The CEO Evaluation Committee is made up of the Port’s Chief Financial Officer, Port Attorney, 
and one Commissioner to serve a 2-year term. The current CEO Evaluation Committee consists 
of Port Commissioner Ken Hohenberg, Port Chief Financial Officer Nick Kooiker and Port 
General Legal Counsel Carolyn Lake. 
 
One duty of the Evaluation Committee is to recommend, for Commission approval, annual CEO 
Goals. The Commission last updated the Port CEO Goals on October 24, 2023. Goal #10 of the 
2023-2024 CEO Goal was a flexible Goal, whereby CEO is to “Identify and present one 
additionally beneficial project or ROI partnering opportunity to commissioners.”    
 
IV. COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The CEO Evaluation Committee recommends that the Commission approve the proposed goal in 
fulfillment of the Flexible Goal #10, which is to initiate and advise Commission of a succession 
plan for the continuity of Port leadership and staff.  
 



  
 

  
V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION: 
 
I move that the Commission approve the proposed goal in fulfillment of 
the Flexible Goal #10, which is “To initiate and advise Commission of a 
succession plan for the continuity of Port leadership and staff”. 
 
-OR- 
 
 Other:_________________________________________. 
 



  

PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2023-29 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FORMALIZING COMPLETION OF  

VARIOUS 2021/22 AND 2023/24 GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission approved goals and objectives for the Port CEO, attached as  
Exhibit “A” on November 8, 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, the algae remediation at Duffy’s Pond has been completed, along with other tenant 

improvements at Columbia Drive; and 
 
WHEREAS, a MOU was presented to the City of Kennewick in relation to the Vista Field Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Port CEO has implemented hybrid meetings and work protocols, with the installation of 

cameras in the commission chambers; and  
 
WHEREAS, an agreement was reached with TRIDEC on March 16, 2023 related to increased marketing 

efforts at Vista Field; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission desires to formally accept as complete Goal #5 of the CEO’s 2021/22 

Goals and Objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission desires to formally accept as complete Goals #6, #8, and #9 of the CEO’s 

2023/24 Goals and Objectives. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of the Port of 

Kennewick hereby accepts as complete Goal #5 of the CEO’s 2021/22 Goals and Objectives, and Goals #6, 
#8, and #9 of the CEO’s 2023/24 Goals and Objectives. 
 
      ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 24th day of October 2023.  

 
PORT of KENNEWICK 

  BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

By:  __________________________________ 
 
 SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 
      
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
 
        KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 
 THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E325527E-A327-4B21-A796-F739C7D68100



Exhibit "A"

EXHIBIT A CEO 2023/24 Goals & Objectives (including update on 2019/20/21/22 ongoing goals)

DATE:

GOAL & OBJECTIVE
ACTION

STATUS 
(checkmark = 
Completed) COMMENTS

2

5

1

2

3

4

5

October 24, 2023

TACTICAL STEPS

2019/2020 Goals and Objectives Carryover

Vista Field

2019/20 GOAL
Sell one parcel or obtain one ground lease (does not include Arts Center Task Force).

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

50% Complete The Port is advertising lots for sale.  Various Letters of Intent's have been received; and one has been accepted by the 
Commission.  

2021/2022 Goals and Objectives Carryover

Kennewick Waterfront

2021/22 GOAL
Implement the identified Duffy's Pond tenant-improvements and algae mitigation plan.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

100% Complete

Algae remediation for Duffy's Pond has been implemented, bathroom constructed and art wrap completed.  
Demonstration vineyard with Palencia completed.  Standing bar installed on tasting room patios completed.  Wayfinding 
signage completed.  

Food truck plaza fencing was bid (pulled project due to escalating material costs).  

Meier Architecture is on contract and has completed the design concept drawings.

2023/2024 Goals and Objectives

Vista Field

2023/24 GOAL
Complete A&E for Vista Field Parking Lots

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

50% Complete Praking lots have been identified and the layout was amended due to submitted LOI's.  Parametrix is on contract for A&E.  
Anticipate cost estimates by late fall. 

Vista Field

2023/24 GOAL
Complete Vista Field Development building exterior improvements

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

15% Complete

Stage has been purchased.  Negotiating stage lease agreement.  Estimated delivery date for stage is February 2024.  Hired 
Hall Engineering for foundation engineering, and engineering to commencee after final concert of the 2023 season (late 
September).

Kennewick Waterfront

2023/24 GOAL
Prepare and market one clover island lot for lease.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

25% Complete North Shoreline improvements have been completed to enable marketing efforts.  East end of island will be completed by 
Corps of Engineers

Kennewick Waterfront

2023/24 GOAL Complete A&E and cost estimate for clover island stage project and assess opportunities for 
public private partnership.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

80% Complete

Kennewick Waterfront

2023/24 GOAL Market for sale, and sell or lease one lot in the Kennewick waterfront area which includes 
willows, cable greens, and columbia drive

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Work in Process Work in Progress

DocuSign Envelope ID: E325527E-A327-4B21-A796-F739C7D68100



Exhibit "A"

GOAL & OBJECTIVE
ACTION

STATUS 
(checkmark = 
Completed) COMMENTSTACTICAL STEPS

6

7

8

9

10

Worked with City Manager for eight months on MOU.  Presented MOU and accepted by Port Commission.  Voted on and 
rejected by City Council.

Kennewick Waterfront/Vista 
Field

2023/24 GOAL Pursue interlocal agreement (or MOU) with City of Kennewick related to city of Kennewick-
allocated RCCF funds to be used to benefit projects located within the City in Vista Field or 
Columbia Drive

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

100% Complete

Camera installation completed in October 2023.

District wide

2023/24 GOAL
Carry out joint meeting with one jurisdictional partner (remote)

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Work in Process Work in Progress

District wide

2023/24 GOAL Present options for hybrid meeting and work protocols that promotes continued staff and port 
productivity

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

100% Complete

Ideas:  
Find solution for tenuous IT situtation.
Find solution for Temporary Workers
Art Project
Vista Field - Day Break Commons
Sales office at Vista Field

District wide

2023/24 GOAL
Identify and present to commission joint Tridec project of benefit to the Port

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

100% Complete Agreement with TRIDEC re: Vista Field opportunities

District wide

2023/24 GOAL Flexible Goal: Identify and present one additionally beneficial project or ROI partnering 
opportunity to commissioners.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Work in Process

DocuSign Envelope ID: E325527E-A327-4B21-A796-F739C7D68100



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

Resolution No. 2024-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS UPDATING THE PORT’S 
CHIEF EXECUTICVE OFFICER GOALS & OBJECTIVES 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission last approved goals and objectives for the Port Chief Executive Officer 

(“CEO”) on October 24, 2023, as shown on the attached Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, Goal #10 of the 2023-2024 CEO’s Goal was a flexible Goal, whereby the Port CEO is to 
“Identify and present one additionally beneficial project or ROI partnering opportunity to commissioners.”; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Port CEO has identified a proposed goal in fulfillment of the Flexible Goal #10, which is 
to initiate and advise the Commission of a succession plan for the continuity of Port leadership; and  

WHEREAS, the Evaluation Committee reviewed and recommends adoption of the proposed goal as the 
Flexible Goal #10, which is to initiate and advise the Commission of a succession plan for the continuity of 
Port leadership and staff; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Commission desires to formally accept the proposed goal as the Flexible Goal #10.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of the Port of 

Kennewick hereby accepts the proposed goal in fulfillment of the Flexible Goal #10, which is: “To initiate and 
advise the Commission of a succession plan for the continuity of Port leadership and staff”. 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 11th day of June 2024. 

 
PORT of KENNEWICK 
BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
By:    

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 

 
By:    

KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
By:    

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary


	Blank Page
	2024-11 Updating CEO Goal #10.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK
	PORT of KENNEWICK BOARD of COMMISSIONERS

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



